6/30/94

#### NEGOTIATIONS AGREEMENT

#### BETWEEN

#### PORTAGE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

AND

TEAMSTERS LOCAL #214

1992 - 1994

Michigan State University LABOR AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS LIBRARY

Portage Rublic Schole

#### またはないです。 「他」 ふたいふう やいふえん

#### Margin 10.

and the second

Little Constant Sectore

Anonigen Jahre University A ROR AND INDUSTRIAL P. P. C. O. C. (1919/AGV

### PORTAGE PUBLIC SCHOOLS PORTAGE, MICHIGAN

## TEAMSTERS LOCAL 214

July 1, 1992 - June 30, 1994

		TABLE OF CONTENTS	PAGE
ARTICLE	I	RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE	II	AGENCY SHOP, PAYROLL DUES DEDUCTIONS	1
ARTICLE	III	PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES	3
ARTICLE	IV	COMPENSATION	3
ARTICLE	V	OVERTIME	3
ARTICLE	VI	TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT	5
ARTICLE	VII	UNIFORMS	5
ARTICLE	VIII	WORK WEEK/WORK DAY	5
ARTICLE	IX	HOLIDAYS	6
ARTICLE	x	VACATIONS	6
ARTICLE	XI	INSURANCE	7
ARTICLE	XII	LEAVES Sick Leave Business Leaves Special Leaves Union Leave Funeral Leave Leaves of Absence Without Pay	8 9 10 10 10 11
ARTICLE	XIII	SENIORITY AND PROMOTION	12
ARTICLE	XIV	LAY OFF AND RECALL	13
ARTICLE	xv	NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES	14
ARTICLE	XVI	SCHOOL'S RIGHTS CLAUSE	14
ARTICLE	XVII	CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS	15
ARTICLE	XVIII	DISCHARGE, DEMOTION AND DISCIPLINE	15
ARTICLE	XIX	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	16

ATTAN ANTINA

ARTICLE XX	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	16
ARTICLE XXI	STEWARDS	19
ARTICLE XXII	DURATION OF AGREEMENT	20
SCHEDULE A	SALARY SCHEDULE 7/01-92 - 6/30/93 SALARY SCHEDULE 7/01/93 - 6/30/94	

PAGE

3



#### NEGOTIATIONS AGREEMENT

#### BETWEEN

#### PORTAGE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

#### and

#### TEAMSTERS LOCAL 214

This Agreement entered into this July 01, 1992 by and between the Portage Public Schools, hereinafter called the "School" and Teamsters Local 214 hereinafter called the "Union".

#### WITNESSETH

WHEREAS the parties, following extended and deliberate negotiations, have reached certain understandings which they desire to memorialize,

In consideration of the following mutual covenants, it is hereby agreed as follows:

#### ARTICLE I - RECOGNITION

Section 1: The School hereby recognizes the Union as the exclusive bargaining representative as defined in Section II of Act 379, Public Acts of 1965, in regard to wages, hours and other terms and conditions of employment for all permanent, part-time and fulltime custodians, maintenance men, mechanics, warehouseman, delivery-person and print shop employees but excluding supervisory personnel, students, temporary part-time and seasonal employees, and all other employees. The term, employee, when used in this agreement, shall refer to all employees represented by the Union in the bargaining unit as defined above. Any reference in this contract to the male gender is equally applicable to females.

Section 2: This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations or practices of the School which shall be contrary to, or inconsistent with its terms.

#### ARTICLE II - AGENCY SHOP, PAYROLL DUES DEDUCTIONS

Section 1: Membership in the Union is not compulsory. Regular employees have the right to join, not join, maintain or drop their membership in the Union, as they see fit. Neither party shall exert any pressure on or discriminate against an employee as regards such matters.

(a)

Accordingly, it is fair that each employee in the bargaining unit may pay his own way and assume his fair share of the obligation, along with the grant of equal benefit contained in this Agreement, including dues and initiation fee.

In accordance with the policy set forth under paragraph (1) of this section, all employees in the bargaining unit shall, as a condition of continued employment, pay to the Union, the employee's exclusive collective bargaining representative, an amount of money equal to that paid by other employees in the bargaining unit who are members of the Union, which shall be limited to an amount of money equal to the Union's regular and usual initiation fees, and its regular and usual dues. For present regular employees, who have been employed for thirty-one (31) days, such payments shall thirty-one days following the commence effective date or on the date of execution of this Agreement, whichever is the later; and for new employees, and those employees who have not completed thirty-one (31) days of employment, the payment shall start thirty-one (31) days following the date of employment.

(b)

(C)

If any provision of this Article is invalid under Federal Law, or the Laws of the State of Michigan, such provision shall be modified to comply with the requirements of Federal or State Law or shall be renegotiated for the purpose of adequate replacement.

Section 2: During the period of time covered by this Agreement, the Employer agrees to deduct from the pay of any employee all dues and/or initiation fees of Local No. 214, provided, however, that the Union presents to the Employer authorizations, signed by such employee, allowing such deductions and payments to the Local Union. This may be done through the Steward of the Union.

- (a) Amount of initiation fee and dues will be certified to the Employer by the Secretary-Treasurer of the Union.
- (b) Monthly agency fees and initial agency fees will be deducted by the Employer and transmitted to the Union as prescribed above for the deduction and transmission of Union dues and initiation fees.

Section 3: The Union agrees to defend, indemnify and save the School harmless against any and all claims, suits or other forms of liability arising out of its deduction from an employee's pay of Union dues; or in reliance on any list, notice, certification or authorization furnished under this section. The Union assumes full responsibility for the disposition of the deductions so made once they have been sent to the Union.

#### ARTICLE III - PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES

<u>Section 1:</u> All new employees will be on probation for ninety (90) calendar days, and during this period they will have none of the rights and privileges extended by virtue of this Agreement except as set forth below. The School shall have the right in its sole discretion to terminate a probationary employee without that employee having recourse through the grievance procedure.

#### The employer maintains the right to extend the probationary period for up to thirty (30) days if the Union is notified.

Following the completion of thirty (30) calendar days of employment, all probationary employees shall be eligible for holiday pay as set forth in Article IX, prorated sick leave as set forth in Article XII, and the hospital insurance subsidy as set forth in Article XI.

#### ARTICLE IV - COMPENSATION

Section 1: The salaries of employees covered by this Agreement are set forth in Schedule A which is attached to and incorporated in this Agreement.

Section 2: Head Custodial positions shall be classified as follows:

Building Size -

Elementary Building - under 90,000 sq. ft. Middle School - 90,000 to 200,000 sq. ft. High School - over 200,001 sq. ft.

#### ARTICLE V - OVERTIME

Pay for overtime approved by the School shall be as follows:

<u>Section 1</u>) One and one-half (1 1/2) times the employee's regular hourly rate will be paid for all hours worked over eight (8) hours in any one day, or over forty (40) hours in any one week. When the employer requires an employee to work overtime, the employee may still work his/her regularly scheduled shift. Holiday hours will be counted as hours worked in the computation of overtime when they fall Monday through Friday.

<u>Section 2</u>) One and one-half times the regular hourly rate will be paid for all hours worked on Saturday and two times the regular hourly rate for time worked on Sunday or on holidays, except as indicated in Section 4 of this Article. It is understood that time worked on a holiday will be compensated at a total of three times the hourly rate.

<u>Section 3</u> Overtime shall be distributed equally as nearly as is practical to all employees working within the same school or department. However, it is understood and agreed that in emergency situations; such as storm damage, vandalism, employee scheduled for overtime fails to show, etc.; the school may assign the work to any available employee in the bargaining unit.

# Overtime will be assigned according to the attached "Overtime Guidelines".

Section 4) Each year in July all custodians will be given the opportunity to indicate in writing their desire to work overtime outside of their building assignment. Employees may add their names to the overtime list after July, however when added, they will be placed at the top of the list. Persons added to the list after July will be credited with the highest total of hours on the list at that time. Offers to work "outside building" overtime will be made to those employees who have affirmatively responded in order of least overtime worked and/or refused. The list will be re-prioritized <u>quarterly</u> to reflect overtime worked and/or refused during the preceding period. For ease of maintaining the list, hours offered will be counted for placement on the list. Both overtime hours worked and refused will be counted in the priority listing. <u>Quarterly</u> a report will be prepared which indicates total overtime (worked and refused) for each custodian. Twenty (20) copies of the list will be given to the Chief Steward.

Section 5: An employee directed by his supervisor to check a building on days off shall be paid two (2) hours at straight time rate or one and one-half times the actual time worked, whichever is greater.

Section 6: If an employee is required to return to work on an emergency call, he shall be paid a minimum of three (3) hours at their applicable rate of overtime.

Section 7: Those employees who work shifts which extend after 6:00 p.m. shall be paid 15 cents per hour in addition to base wages as defined in Schedule A. Those employees who work after 11:00 p.m. shall be paid 25 cents per hour in addition to base wages as defined in Schedule A.

tours all the countries an hours warned in the one compation is

#### ARTICLE VI - TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT

If the employer temporarily places an employee in a more responsible position for more than a continuous  $\underline{five}$  (5) working days, the employee shall be paid at the same step in the new classification from the first day of the assignment. Such assignment will be at the sole discretion of the employer.

#### ARTICLE VII - UNIFORMS

Section 1: Uniforms will be furnished as follows:

All full-time unit members will be provided, without cost to the employee, five (5) uniform changes per week. New uniforms shall be provided every two years.

Custodial and maintenance employees working less than forty (40) hours per week shall have the number of uniforms prorated according to their work schedules.

Upon termination of employment the employee is responsible for promptly returning all uniforms provided by the School. Failure to do so will result in a reduction of the employees final pay by an amount equal to the cost of the uniforms.

#### ARTICLE VIII - WORK WEEK/WORK DAY

Section 1: The normal work week will be Monday through Friday with the following hours:

7:00 a.	m. to	3:30 p.m.	Head Custodian & Maintenance
3:00 p.	m. to	11:00 p.m.	Custodians
11:00 p.	m. to	7:00 a.m.	
8:00 a.	m. to	4:30 p.m.	Bus Mechanic & Technical Maint.

It is recognized by the Union that some employees may work hours and days other than those listed above. In those instances the hours worked by that employee are considered normal.

Employees will be notified two (2) days in advance of any scheduled change in working hours. This requirement is waived when a change in schedule results from absences occurring on a day to day basis.

Section 2: The Employer shall establish a key personnel list. The employees on such list shall be required to report to work on any day that the school district is closed due to weather or emergency situations. All other staff need not report on these days.

Employees on such list and required to work on such day or days shall be paid at a rate of double their hourly rate for all hours worked. Those employees not required to work will receive their regular straight time earnings for that day.

#### ARTICLE IX - HOLIDAYS

Section 1: The following days will be considered paid holidays.

> Α. New Year's Day Β. Good Friday c. Memorial Day D. July 4th Labor Day Ε. Thanksgiving Day F. Day following Thanksgiving G. н. Day before Christmas Christmas Day I. J.

Day before New Year's Day

When a holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday the School may, at its option, designate the preceding Friday, or the following Monday, as the holiday; or grant an extra day of pay in lieu of time off.

Section 2: In order for an employee to receive compensation for any of the above holidays, he must work the scheduled day before the holiday and the scheduled work day after the holiday, unless the holiday falls during a prearranged and approved absence period.

Section 3: Holiday pay will be based on the employee's regular straight time hourly rate.

#### ARTICLE X - VACATIONS

Section 1: An employee who has worked one continuous year with the School shall be entitled to two (2) weeks of paid vacation. If less than a year has been worked prior to July 1, an employee will be still be eligible for a prorated vacation period which can be taken after July 1; however, if the employee fails to complete the one year of continuous service, the employee is obligated to repay the School a sum of money equivalent to the vacation time previously granted. Permanent part-time employees will be eligible for prorated vacation.

Section 2: An employee will be eligible for three (3) weeks of vacation on July 1 of the year in which his/her seventh (7) employment anniversary occurs. However, the employee may not take the third (3) week of vacation that year until after his/her anniversary date.

An employee will be eligible for four (4) weeks Section 3: of vacation on July 1 of the year in which his/her fifteenth (15) employment anniversary occurs. However, the employee may not take the fourth (4) week of vacation that year until after his/her anniversary date.

Section 4: It is necessary that vacation time off be granted so that the School can maintain adequate staffing at all times. It is understood that vacation requests will not be unreasonably withheld. Each year, during the month of April, all employees will be asked to select dates of their vacation for the upcoming fiscal year. Requests will be honored on the basis of seniority. If an employee does not schedule vacation in this manner, he/she may request the use of vacation time during the year but such requests will be honored by the date of request rather than by seniority. Once approval is granted, it will not be rescinded by the employer and the request may not be withdrawn by the employee during the thirty (30) day period prior to the effective date of the vacation.

Section 5: Vacation pay is computed on the basis of the employee's straight time hourly rate.

Section 6: An employee on a prearranged approved vacation during a week in which a holiday falls will not have the holiday charged to his vacation account. The employee will not receive vacation pay for the holiday.

Section 7: If an employee on vacation becomes ill and is confined to a hospital, he may request, upon his return to work, that the time in the hospital be deducted from his accumulated sick leave. Vacation time equivalent to that time deducted from sick leave may be rescheduled at a later date.

Section 8: Vacation time may not be accrued from one fiscal year to the next without written approval of the Superintendent or his designee. An employee may not take vacation time off prior to the time the vacation is credited to the employee's account.

Section 9: If an employee is disabled from performing their job, he/she may freeze their accrued balance of vacation time.

Section 10: A terminating employee will receive prorated vacation time. The anniversary date of the employee will be used to determine accrued vacation when adjusting the final pay of the employee.

Section 11: An employee involuntarily terminated will be eligible to receive all unused vacation pay.

#### ARTICLE XI - INSURANCE

Section 1: The School will make available to all bargaining unit employees and their dependents a comprehensive hospitalization program including medical and surgical protection. Those bargaining unit employees who elect to participate in the program will be provided an insurance subsidy each month up to the amount indicated in the schedule set forth below. The insurance subsidy must be applied towards the hospitalization premium. The balance of the premium must be payroll deducted in accordance with the procedure established by the School. New employees will receive a prorated subsidy beginning at the completion of thirty (30) days of continuous employment. Enrollment regulations established by the insurance carrier will apply. Effective September 1, 1992 the insurance subsidy shall be up to the amount of \$405.00 per month. Effective July 1, 1993 the insurance subsidy shall be up to \$486.00 per month.

The School District may implement a cafeteria or flexible benefit plan during the term of this agreement provided that benefit levels and costs to the employee are the same as the plans specified in this agreement. Prior to the implementation of such a benefit plan, a committee will be established to review the benefit levels. A Teamster representative will be selected to serve on this committee.

Section 2: Effective September 1, 1992 the School district shall provide fully paid optical benefits equal to the VSP-2 plan.(or as soon as enrollment procedures can be in place).

Section 3: Effective September 1, 1992 the School district shall provide fully paid benefits equal to the Delta Dental 80/80/80 plan.

Section 4: The School District subsidy for insurance benefits will be prorated in the following manner: if an employee is regularly scheduled to work a minimum of 20 hours per week, the School will pay 50% of the full time subsidy; if an employee is regularly scheduled to work 30 hours per week, the subsidy will be 75% of the full time subsidy.

#### ARTICLE XII - LEAVES

#### Section 1:

Α.

#### Sick Leave

Sick leave will be accrued at the rate of one day a month. Each sick leave day accrued will be credited to the employees account at the beginning of the month earned. New employees are not eligible to use paid sick leave during their first 90 days of employment. The employer may grant the use of unearned sick leave on a case by case basis. Permanent parttime employees will be eligible for prorated sick leave.

B

If an employee has been absent from work more than three (3) consecutive days because of illness (physical or mental) the employer may request that the employee provide verification of illness from the employee's physician.

If an employee is absent more than six separate

occurrences per year, he/she may be counseled by the supervisor regarding the reasons for such absences. Physician statements, at the employee's expense, may be required.

If an employee is absent more than ten (10) consecutive working days, the employer may request that the employee see a doctor of the School's choice to verify the need for the extended absence.

С

The amount of leave for accident or illness in the immediate family shall be limited to one day per occurrence not to exceed three days in any school year make necessary one to arrangements for providing care by someone the employee. other than In emergency situations additional time per occurrence may be allowed by the Superintendent of Schools. All additional time will be deducted from the "Immediate employee's sick leave account. family" is defined as spouse, children and any other person dependent upon the employee for support and care. If the member of the immediate family is not living with the employee, "illness in the family" is deducted from sick leave. Special leaves for illness in the family beyond the conditions established in this section may be approved at the sole discretion of the Superintendent of Schools.

D.

Each employee shall be entitled to accumulate the unused portion of each year's sick leave up to a total of <u>one hundred and thirty four (134)</u> <u>days</u> which shall be available to him in future years. Upon termination of employment, all accumulated sick leave benefits are void.

- Sick leave shall be prorated for those employees employed less than a full year.
- F.

Ε.

Illness occurring during snow days or In-Service days shall be charged against the employee's sick leave.

#### Section 2: Business Leaves

Each employee shall be allowed, with full pay, up to two (2) days per year for the purpose of transacting business. Absences under this provision shall be necessary personal business reasons which cannot be handled at any other time than during the work day. Business leave requests indicating the reason for the absence must be approved by the Superintendent, or person designated by him, prior to the leave date except in cases of emergencies. Business leaves may not be used as an extension of vacations or holidays. Acceptable uses of business leaves are doctor, dentist and legal appointments.

#### Section 3: Special Leaves

Leaves with pay and not chargeable against sick leave or business leave allowances are as follows:

- Α.
- Absence when an employee is called for jury duty, except the School will pay only the difference between the per diem rate of the employee and the amount received for jury duty.

в.

- When second shift employees work a full day on jury duty, they must work one half of their regularly scheduled shift. Jury duty obligations for third shift employees will be considered on a case by case basis. An example of consideration would be consecutive full days of jury duty
- C. Court appearance when the employee is called as a witness on School matters. The School will pay only the difference between the per diem rate of the employee and the amount received for services as a witness. This section shall not be in effect in any case in which the employee brings suit against the school district.

#### Section 4: Union Leave

# Employees who are elected or selected by the Union to accept a full-time assignment with the local Union, the District or the International Union which assignment takes them away from their employment with the School shall, upon written request by the Union served upon the Director of Operations, be given a leave of absence without pay and without loss of seniority for such purpose, provided that no more than one (1) employee shall be granted such leave at the same time and provided further that such leave shall not exceed two (2) years or the duration of that assignment, which ever is shorter.

#### Section 5: Funeral Leave

The School shall grant up to three (3) days with pay when death occurs in the immediate family. The absence must occur from the day of death through the day of the funeral unless the location of the funeral is more than 200 miles from the School District; then one (1) of the three (3) days may be used for travel time. "Immediate family" shall be defined as wife, husband, son, daughter, mother, father, sister, brother, step-parent, step-child, parent-in-law, grandparent, or grandchild. Immediate family shall also include those persons who maintained a common legal residence with the employee at the time of death. Up to one (1) day with pay shall be granted when death occurs in the non-immediate family.

- a. Such absence shall be reported to the School on the first day.
- b. Absence must be used for the purpose of attending the funeral or other services following the customary practices in connection with such a death.

с.

In the event of the death of a friend, up to one (1) day of funeral leave will be provided to attend the funeral of the friend. Such time will be chargeable to the individual's sick leave account and shall be limited to one (1) occurrence per year.

#### Section 6: Leaves of Absence Without Pay

An employee on a leave of absence without pay is considered on the inactive payroll and as such is not entitled to the benefits under this contract. An employee who fails to return to work from a leave on or before the expiration date will be terminated.

Α.

в.

Any employee whose personal illness extends beyond the period compensated by sick leave may be granted a leave of absence without pay or fringe benefits for such time as may be necessary for complete recovery from such illness, except the limit of such leaves shall be one year from the last day the employee worked.

Application for leave of absence must be submitted to the Superintendent's office for approval prior to the starting date of such leave.

The School may require verification from a competent medical authority of the School's choice as to the need of employee for such extended leave. Upon return from illness leave of absence the School shall have the right to require a verification from a competent medical authority of the School's choice as to the employee's fitness to return.

Any situation which might arise concerning leaves, which is not referred to in this Agreement, shall be left to the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools. However, such leaves shall be considered leaves of absence

#### without pay.

#### ARTICLE XIII - SENIORITY AND PROMOTION

Section 1: When openings occur in the bargaining unit, candidates from within the Union who have expressed an interest in the job (Section 4-A) will be given consideration by seniority, ability to perform the job, and past work record. All other factors being equal, the most senior applicant will be awarded the position.

> Testing procedures will be used in the promotion of employees in Grade II and above to determine an employee's ability to perform the job.

Section 2: Employees who are awarded a posted job are restricted for a period of one (1) year from the date of the award from bidding on other vacancies within the same classification and shift.

<u>Section 3:</u> If an employee is promoted to a higher classified job, he/she will receive a .12 cent per hour increase at the time of the transfer. The employee will be transferred at this new rate to the new job classification. Upon satisfactory completion of the sixty (60) day probationary period, the employee's wage will be raised to the next step in the classification. On the following July 1, the promoted employee will be given credit for experience on the new job in increments of 1/4 step for each three (3) months of experience in the new position.

Section 4: An employee who voluntarily or involuntarily transfers to a lower classified job will be placed on the step of the lower salary grade at the level they would have been at if the promotion to the higher grade had not occurred. No employee will be paid at a rate greater than the maximum indicated in Salary Schedule A for the job he is performing.

Section 5:

A:

в.

a.

All the job vacancies will be posted in each school building for a period of five (5) working days and a copy will be given to the Chief Steward. Job posting will include the school assignment (if applicable) the shift, and required qualifications. Employees wishing to apply may submit their names in writing to the Personnel Office within the five day period. All employees submitting an application will be considered and will be informed of acceptance or rejection in writing, with the reason stated.

An employee transferred from within the

bargaining unit to a new job will be given a sixty (60) day probationary trial period.

If at the end of the trial period the employee has not demonstrated his ability to perform the job satisfactorily, arrangements will be made to transfer the employee back to his former position and pay. If the employee decides he does not wish to continue on the new job, he may request to return to his former position and pay.

Section 6: The employer shall furnish current seniority lists up to two (2) times per year, upon written request of the Chief Steward.

Section 7: When a person serves as a Maintenance Helper for three (3) year he/she will be promoted to Maintenance Worker upon successful completion of a test.

#### ARTICLE XIV - LAY OFF AND RECALL

Section 1: When a new employee completes his ninety (90) day probationary period, he shall be placed on the seniority list as of his last date of hire. There shall be no seniority among probationary employees.

Section 2: If it becomes necessary to reduce the labor force, the employee with the least amount of total school seniority in the affected classification shall be laid off first. If there are employees with less total bargaining unit seniority than the affected employee in a lower or different classification, the affected employee may bump the employee with the least amount of bargaining unit seniority in that classification. If an employee is bumped into a position and later bids into a position, the recall rights to the original job are terminated.

Section 3: An employee who has been displaced but has remained in the reduced work force shall be returned to his/her former classification before new positions are posted. An employee refusing a recall to his/her former classification waives all future claims to that classification.

Section 4: A laid off employee shall be called back in reverse order in which he/she was laid off, provided the laid off employee has the ability to perform the required duties.

Section 5: Responsibilities of laid off employees.

A laid off employee will:

a)

C.

Make sure the Employee Relations Department has his/her current address and telephone number.

- Notify the Employee Relations Department in writing of any change in address or telephone number.
- c) Respond to the receipt of a recall notice within five (5) working days. (Non-acceptance of registered letter will not void this requirement.)
- d) Be available for work within five (5) days from receipt of letter of recall.

If the laid off employee fails to meet any of the above responsibilities the School may terminate the employee as having `voluntarily quit'.

b)

Section 6: A laid off employee will remain on the recall list for a period equal to their length of seniority or two years whichever is shorter. If an employee has not been recalled to work within two years, the employer may terminate that employee from employment with the School System. The School has no obligation under this agreement to re-employ any probationary laid off employee.

#### ARTICLE XV - NEGOTIATION PROCEDURES

The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this Agreement each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law from the area of collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. Therefore, the School District and the Union for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated, to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or matter referred to or covered by this Agreement and with respect to any subject or matter not specifically referred to or covered in this Agreement, even though such subject may not have been within the knowledge and contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time that they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

#### ARTICLE XVI - SCHOOL'S RIGHTS CLAUSE

Section 1: The School, on its own behalf and on behalf of the electors of the district, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and Constitution of the State of Michigan, and of the United States including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the right to the executive management and administrative control of the school system. The School has the right to maintain order and efficiency; to hire; to direct the work force; to determine the number of employees; to assign work, and to transfer employees; to discipline, suspend and discharge for cause; to lay off employees because of lack of work and to recall employees when increasing the work force; to require employees to observe rules and regulations. These rights may be exercised even though resulting in transfer, reclassification or elimination of some employees. The exercise of these powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities by the School and the adoption of such rules, regulations and policies as it may deem necessary shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of this Agreement.

<u>Section 2:</u> The employer shall have the right to use other employers or personnel outside the bargaining unit to perform specialized work when, in the School's opinion, it does not have the manpower, proper equipment, capacity, ability or facilities to perform; or which, in its opinion, it cannot economically and/or practically perform, provided the work being subcontracted will not result in a reduction in the number of employees in the bargaining unit as a direct result of the work being performed by the subcontractors.

#### ARTICLE XVII - CONTINUITY OF OPERATIONS

The Union agrees that during the term of this Agreement and while negotiations are continuing on a successor agreement, it shall not direct, instigate, participate in, encourage, or support any interruption of work or other concerted action against the School by any custodial or maintenance employee, or any group of custodial or maintenance employees, as referred to in Article I. Participation in any interruption of the School program brought about either by the actions of the Union or of individuals or groups within the Union shall be cause for discipline of the participants by the employer up to and including discharge.

#### ARTICLE XVIII - DISCHARGE, DEMOTION AND DISCIPLINE

<u>Section 1:</u> The School has the right to discipline an employee for just cause up to and including discharge. Discipline is to be corrective in nature and shall be progressive. Discipline will occur for violations of the work rules or for offenses which are of equal magnitude. Disciplinary actions are subject to the grievance procedure as outlined in this Agreement. All grievances involving suspensions or discharge of an employee will be submitted at the third step of the grievance procedure.

Section 2: Should it be necessary to reprimand an employee, the reprimand shall be given in a business like manner.

Section 3: Upon request, an employee may review his/her official personnel file. Any disciplinary actions over two years old shall not be used in any subsequent disciplinary action.

Section 4: The parties to this agreement will enter into

discussion regarding work rules and policies. All such matters shall be subject to the grievance procedure.

#### ARTICLE XIX - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 1: An employee who wishes to resign shall file a written notice of resignation with the School at least one (1) week prior to the time the employee expects to leave the employ of the School.

Section 2: The Union recognizes the right of the School to require physical examinations, as prescribed by the School from a doctor of the School's choice. The School shall bear the expense of any such examination.

Section 3: A committee representing the Union and the School may meet up to three (3) times each year at mutually agreed upon times to discuss items of concern to both parties. The above meetings may be held upon the request of either party.

Section 4: A Safety Committee will be established consisting of management and bargaining unit members to discuss matters relating to the health and safety of employees.

<u>Section 5:</u> The School shall furnish to the Union, in response to reasonable requests from the Chief Steward, such public information that would assist the Union to bargain collectively with the School.

Section 6: Copies of the Agreement will be made available to the Union for distribution to its membership.

Section 7: This Agreement supersedes and cancels all previous Agreements, verbal or written or based on alleged past practices, between the School District and the Union and constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. Any amendment or agreement supplemental hereto shall not be binding upon either party unless executed in writing by the parties hereto.

Section 8: The employer shall provide copies of status change notices for bargaining unit members to the Chief Steward.

Section 9: In the event any employee of this bargaining unit is mandated to apply for a Commercial Driver's License, the Employer will pay all costs for such license and endorsements required by law.

#### ARTICLE XX - GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

Section 1: A grievance is defined as an alleged violation of a specific article or section of this Agreement.

Section 2: Nothing within this Agreement shall be construed

to prevent any individual employee from presenting a grievance and having the grievance adjusted without intervention of the Union, if the adjustment is not inconsistent with terms of this Agreement.

Section 3: Procedure

Step 1

An employee with a grievance shall discuss it with his immediate supervisor individually, together with his representative, or through the Union representative. This discussion must be held within five (5) working days of its occurrence or said grievance shall be deemed waived by the employee, Union and the School.

If a satisfactory settlement is not reached as a result of the above meeting, the grievance must be reduced to writing and submitted within five (5) working days from date of meeting to the supervisor for his decision. This answer must be given in writing within five (5) working days from date of receipt.

Step 2

If the decision of the supervisor is unacceptable to the Union, the Union may take the grievance up with the Coordinator of Maintenance & Operations within five (5) working days following the supervisor's decision. The Coordinator of Maintenance & Operations, or his representative, shall give his decision in writing over his signature within five (5) working days following presentation of the grievance by the Union.

Step 3

the decision of the Coordinator of If Maintenance & Operations is unacceptable to the Union, the Union shall so notify the Director of Operations within three (3) working days following the rendering of the decision in Step At that time, the Union has the right to 2. request a meeting with the Superintendent of Schools to present the facts upon which the grievance is based, remedy or correction that is requested, and the section or sections of the contract that have been violated. Such a meeting must be held within seven (7) working The from date of request. days Superintendent's written decision must be delivered to the Union within seven (7) working days following the meeting with the Superintendent.

<u>Step 4</u> In the event the grievance is not satisfactorily resolved at Step 3, within ten (10) working days after receipt of the Superintendent's decision the grievance may be transmitted to the State Labor Mediation Board for purposes of acquiring assistance of the State Labor Mediator for grievance meeting purposes. Such meeting shall be held within fifteen (15) days after request by either party.

Step 5 In the event the grievance is not satisfactorily settled at Step 4, the Union shall have ten (10) days in which to submit the grievance to binding arbitration in accordance with the procedures set forth below or to the Teamsters Local 214 Grievance Panel. Notice of the Union's intent to proceed to the Grievance Panel must be submitted to the Employer in writing. The decision of the Grievance Panel shall be made within sixty (60) days of the notice to the Employer of submission to the Grievance Panel. Should the Grievance Panel recommend that the matter be submitted to arbitration, the Union shall have ten days after the Panel's decision to submit the matter arbitration in accordance with to the procedures set forth below. If the Grievance is not so submitted within ten days it will be considered closed on the basis of the last resolution. If at this point grievances have not been satisfactorily settled, the union shall have the right to refer such grievances to arbitration in accordance with the voluntary labor arbitration rules of the american arbitration association then in effect, provided such referral is made in writing with a copy to the director of operations within ten (10) working days after receipt by the union of the 4th step answer for such grievances. If the grievances have not been submitted to arbitration within said ten (10) working day period, they shall be considered as being resolved. The arbitrator shall have no authority to add to, subtract from, change or modify any provisions of this agreement but shall be limited solely to the interpretation and application of the specific provisions contained herein. However, nothing contained herein shall be construed to limit the authority of an arbitrator, in his own judgment, to sustain, reverse or modify any alleged unjust discharge that may reach this stage of the grievance procedure. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the parties hereto. The expenses and fees of the arbitrator and the american arbitration association shall be shared equally by the school and the union.

#### Section 6:

Α.

Β.

Grievances that are not appealed within the time limit specified in each step of the grievance procedure shall be considered settled on the basis of the decision last rendered; unless such time limit is extended by mutual agreement in writing by the parties involved.

If the School fails to give an answer within any time limit specified in the grievance procedure (unless such time limit is extended by mutual agreement) the Union may submit the grievance to the next step of the grievance procedure.

C.

administration of the grievance the In procedures any financial liability to the School District shall be limited to the amount of earnings actually lost with deductions of all sums earned during this period. If an error is made in the calculation of an employee's salary, the School will be liable for the shortage. If an error should be made which results in overpayment to the employee, then the employee shall be obligated to repay the School. Such liability on the employee and the School shall be limited to the current contract year.

#### ARTICLE XXI - STEWARDS

The employer recognizes the right of the Local Union membership to select <u>four (4)</u> stewards from the Employer's seniority list of employees in the Unit. The steward shall be permitted time to investigate, present, and process grievances on the Employer property, without the loss of time or pay during his regular working hours. In each and every instance where such time is required, the length of time and the time period within the working hours shall be approved by the custodian supervisor, maintenance supervisor or coordinator of maintenance & operations prior to the requested absence. Such time shall be granted unless the steward requesting the released time is involved in an emergency situation.

#### ARTICLE XXII - DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall become effective on July 1, 1992 and will remain in effect until midnight, June 30, 1994 and will be automatically renewed for successive periods of one (1) year unless either party gives written notice on the other party at least sixty (60) days and not more than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of its intention to terminate this Agreement.

S LOCAL #214		ta Micharle and	
	n.C. 1963 Sec. 1951	B Die W wind B	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		May - Drick - May -	
-			
	CARTERN, MURL		
adapter and bearing	tuto (Serimon)	tel strange of the	
and the sub-			
Rit .			
and the second			
TOUGAMTON			
EDUCATION			
		4. 14.	
President	the second s		
		Lond theat	
		100000	
Superintendent			•
	We you the second		
75 N T			
	DUCATION		President

#### SCHEDULE A

#### SALARIES FOR CUSTODIAL AND MAINTENANCE PERSONNEL

July 1, 1992 - June 30, 1993

#### GRADE 1

#### GRADE 2

CUSTODIAN UTILITY CUSTODIAN DELIVERY PERSON

ELEMENTARY HEAD CUSTODIAN ASSISTANT PRINTER

GRADE 4

Probation	\$ 7.59
Step 1:	\$ 9.18
2:	\$ 9.78
.3:	\$10.45

## GRADE 3

Step 1: \$10.09 2: \$10.61

3: \$10.92

APPRENTICE A-V TECHNICIAN PRINTER WAREHOUSEMAN MIDDLE SCHOOL HEAD CUST. MAINTENANCE HELPER

Step	1:	\$10.61
	2:	\$11.02
	3:	\$11.28

#### **GRADE 5**

BUILDING ENGINEER HEAD BUS MECHANIC BUS MECHANIC ELECTRONIC TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE

Step	1:	\$11.58
1.1	2:	\$11.86
	3:	\$12.22

HIGH	SCH	OOL	HEAD	CUSTODIAN
Step	1:	\$10	0.76	
			1.08	

#### GRADE 6

#### JOURNEYMAN

Step	1:	\$11.87
21237	2:	\$12.16
	3:	\$12.53

# A - A Character - - - -

investigation and compared to the state of the second state of the

#### SCHEDULE A

#### SALARIES FOR CUSTODIAL AND MAINTENANCE PERSONNEL

July 1, 1993 - June 30, 1994

#### GRADE 1

GRADE 2

CUSTODIAN UTILITY CUSTODIAN DELIVERY PERSON

.

.

Probation	\$ 7.89
Step 1:	\$ 9.55
2:	\$10.17
3:	\$10.87

#### GRADE 3

APPRENTICE A-V TECHNICIAN PRINTER WAREHOUSEMAN MIDDLE SCHOOL HEAD CUST. MAINTENANCE HELPER

Step	1:	\$11.03
	2:	\$11.46
	3:	\$11.73

#### GRADE 5

BUILDING ENGINEER HEAD BUS MECHANIC BUS MECHANIC ELECTRONIC TECHNICIAN MAINTENANCE

Step	1:	\$12.04
	2:	\$12.33
	3:	\$12.71

ELEMENTARY	HEAD	CUSTODIAN
ASSISTANT	PRINTE	R

Step	1:	\$10.49
	2:	\$11.03
	3:	\$11.36

GRADE 4

#### HIGH SCHOOL HEAD CUSTODIAN

Step	1:	\$11.19
	2:	\$11.52
	3:	\$11.90

GRADE 6

#### JOURNEYMAN

Step	1:	\$12.35
	2:	\$12.65
	3:	\$13.03

## The state of the second st

#### **OVERTIME GUIDELINES**

When custodians are on vacation, ill, pbl, etc. it is considered "unavailable" and they will be charged for overtime if they are next in line to be called. Elementary custodians will be charged if they are ill and the other custodian says no for overtime and the ill custodian comes up in rotation.

Accumulated overtime (worked or refused) at one and one half or double time will be recorded as appropriate. For example: 5 hours would be recorded at 7.5 hours worked at time and a half and 10 hours worked at double time. (Scheduled events from PCEC will be recorded at what the hours are on the Room Reservation list <u>not</u> what you actually worked).

Separate totals for in building and out building will be kept.

All overtime scheduled by PCEC will be assigned two weeks prior to the scheduled date.

No trading of overtime assignments will be permitted.

\*

\*

Custodians refusing overtime six consecutive times will be removed from the overtime list for the remainder of the year.

Overtime Reports will be given to the Union Steward quarterly, beginning with October, January, April and July.

During the school year, second shift custodians will be contacted between 3 p.m. and 4:45 p.m. for scheduled overtime.

Vacation periods will be from Sunday through Saturday. If you return on Monday you can be called for overtime on the prior Sunday. You will be considered "unavailable" for a Saturday overtime if you have been on vacation the previous week.

Utility custodians will be considered for out-building overtime only. In the event that a utility custodian is covering a person in a building where there is overtime needed, instead of going outbuilding, the utility custodian will be asked to work overtime if all other regular building custodians turn down the overtime. This only applies to those utility custodians who have signed up for overtime.

The sign up time for overtime will be changed to July 1 (effective 1992) from September 1.

All church overtime will be scheduled by the department secretary.



For scheduled events, third shift custodians will be given one day to respond to answering machine or families taking messages. For illnesses, an answering machine or no-one answering will go down as a charge and the department secretary will go on to the next person in line.

Building Principals will be notified that <u>ALL</u> overtime assignments are to be handled through the Department of Maintenance & Operations.

\*

\*

\*

Anyone asked to work scheduled overtime after Wednesday p.m. for the following weekend will not be charged with a refusal. Only the person who works the overtime will have it recorded as it would normally be.

When making overtime assignments in a building where the second day shift person is ill and an overtime person comes in, the other day shift person already working will not be charged if his name comes up in the overtime rotation schedule.



то:	Teamsters Local #214 Bargaining Team	
FROM:	Deborah L. O'Connor	
RE:	Future Negotiations	
DATE:	July 17, 1990	

During our negotiations for the 1990–92 contract we discussed the wage spread between grades 3 and 5. The schedule reflects our efforts to create a greater spread between these two grades. It is our intent in future negotiations to continue this philosophy and to provide for higher wages at the top of the scale. This recognizes the skill level required for grade 5 positions.





